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Q He didn't really give an answer. 

MR. HUSHEN: That is a problem for the lawvers. 
I couldn't enlighten you any more. 

Q tv as Nr. Ford happy with that? Hasn't 
President Ford unhappy with that? 

MR. HUSHEN: He didn't indicate any emotion 
one way or another about it. It was a very complicated 
subject reaching that agreement between the former 
President, the General Services Administration and the 
V.7hite House to get the tapes and documents out of the 
White House, but still in safekeeping • 

.------- Q Jack, have you been able to determine~ wy 
f the President authorized you to say last Tuesday -

that that entire matter is under study in answer to a 
question about pardons for other Watergate figures? 

MR. HUSHEN: Yes, but I am not going to have 
anything further to say about it. 

Q Jack, can you explain why the President 
would use an emissary who is under investigation in the 
Justice Department for such a delicate negotiation, 
something that means so much to the American people? 

MR. HUSHEN: Well, you are still innocent until 
you are proven guilty. 

Q Was he aware of the investigation? 

MR. HUSHEN: I believe when :Hr. Backer first 
came to the attention of President Ford, it was to assist 
in the confirmation hearings as Vice President, and at 
that time, I believe 

Q Jack, that was the second time. 

MR. HUSHEN: All right, the second time, then. 

Let me just finish this. Mr. Buchen told me 
that Mr. Becker said that he had had some problems, most 
of which had been resolved satisfactorily. The only 
remaining one was a question of a tax deduction, and he 
had given the necessary documentation and had heard 
nothing furthermore on it and just assumed that that 
matter was closed. I think, you know, we were generally 
aware of it. 
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GSA REQUEST FOR FUNDS FOR' NIXON 

Q: Does the President poraoaally favor this $850, 000 
request? 

A: Obviously anything the President puts his name on and sends 
to Congress he does not disapprove of. The President feels 
that Congress does have the obligation to investigate and make 
its own judgment, and the President would abide by whatever 
decision Congress makes on this. 

Guidance: Refer back to your statement of the other day that the specific 
request was worked out between GSA and the former President 
and the formality of it is that the President signs all requests for 
funds to Congress. 

Also point out that some of the money requested there is no 
choice on because he is legally entitled to a pension and 
meney for his staff. 

Also point out that a large part of the request was for a vault 
to store the papers in, which was requested on the assumption 
it would be needed. 
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LEGISLATION RE: OWNERSlllP OF PRESIDENTIAL PAPERS AND 
NIXON TAPES AGREEMENT 

Q. Has the President taken any position on the legialation which would 

make Presidential papers the property of the governm.ent rather 

than of the former President? 

A. There has been some research and analysis done by the White House 

on the legislation as it was originally drafted which disclosed some 

serious conatitutional queations. To the extent that the legislation 

is unconstitutional the President would oppose it. But I would 

point out that we don't know what form the legislation will finally 

take. 

Q. Has he instructed his Congressional Relations office to work 

A. Bill Timmons office is aware of the questions that have been raised 

as to the validity of the proposed legislation and I believe that he 

has made that information available on the Hill. 

Q. Will the President veto a bill requiring former President Nixon 

to relinquish the ownership of his papers? 

A. To the extent that such legislation would be unconstitutional, the 

President would oppose it; however, I would point out that it has 

only been acted upon by a Senate Committee and we do not know what 

the final product will look like. 
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Q. WaY' would the President oppose such legislation? 

A. By tradition, the personal papers and tape recordings of a 

President are his property. This position is supported by a ruling 

by the Attorney General. Therefore, custody of the materi~l · 

~~~~ 
a decision which each President has to make '; I I bL 

has said, he does not plan to retain custody of his papers, but 

will turn them over to the University of Michigan • 

• 
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STATEMENT BY THE PRESIDENT 
UPON SIGNING S. 4016, THE 
"PRESIDENTIAL RECORDINGS AND 
MATERIALS PRESERVATION ACT" 

b<AFT 

I have today affixed my signature to S. 4016, an Act to protect 

and preserve tape recordings of conversations involving former President 

Richard M. Nixon and made during his tenure as President, and for other 

purposes. 

Title I of the measure governs the possession, security and 

accessibility of tape recordings and other materials of the former President. 

The Administrator of General Services is charged with obtaining "complete 

possession and control" over the tape recordings and materials which would 

be made ~vailable immediately, subject to any rights, defenses or privileges 

which may be asserted, for "subpoena or other legal process. 11 The 

Administrator is also directed to issue protective regulations "at the 

earliest possible date" governing the possession, security and custody of 

the tapes and materials. Finally, the Administrator .shall draft regulations 

governing general public access to the tapes and materials, taking into 

account a series of specified needs: (1) to provide the public with the "full 

truth" on the abuses of governmental power incident to "Watergate"; (2) 

to make the tapes and materials available for judicial proceedings; (3) 

to guarantee the integrity of national security information; (4) to protect 

individual .rights to a fair trial; (5) to protect the opportunity to assert 

available rights and privileges; (6) to provide public access to materials of 

historical significance; and (7) to provide the former President with tapes or 

materials in which the public has no interest. 

Title I also provides for the expedited judicial review of challenge's 

to the "legal or constitutional validity" of the statute or of any regulation 

is sued under its authority, and any action or proceeding involving "the 
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question of title, ownership, custody, possession or control" of any 

tape recording or other material. In the event it is determined that the 

former President has been deprived of personal property under the 

provisions of Title I, "just compensation'' shall be paid to him • 
... '. 
Title II of the subject bill establishes a "Public Documents 

Commission" to study problems with respect to the control. disposition 

and preservation of records produced by or on behalf of "Federal officials", 

defined to include elected Federal officials and any officer of the executive, 

judicial or legislative branch of the Federal Government. The Commission 

is directed to make specific recommendations for legislation and other 

recommendations for rules and procedures as may be appropriate regarding 

the documents of such officials. A final report fulfilling their mandate is to 

be submitted to the Congress and the President by March 31, 1976. 

It may be helpful to place the enactment of this legislation in some 

perspective. Following the release of an opinion of the Attorney General of 

the United States to the effect that the tapes and materials of the former 

President constituted his personal property, an agreement was entered into 

by Mr. Nixon and Mr. Sampson, Administrator d. ~eneral Services. on 

September 6, 1974. This agreement was intended to govern the possession, 

security and accessibility of the tapes and materials and it did secure them 

from destruction or alteration during HE periods when they might be needed 

in court and grand jury proceedings. Since then, a great deal of ~itigation 

and public attention has centered on that agreement. Although I do not 

believe it would be appropriate to comment on the various issues, 

constitutional or otherwise, which are presented by pending cases or by 

the subject bill, I do want to mention that, by agreement made November 9, 

1974, the interests of the Watergate Special Prosecution Force for access 

to the tapes and materials were fully accommodated. 
that it 

It is my understanding o£ the intent of the Congress/will operate 

to provide the former President and others with every opportunity to 

, 
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litigate any right or privilege which may be asserted relevant to the 

tapes or materials. {~y faith in our judicial system convinces me that 

these rights and pri~ileges will be protected) 

I trust that the Administrator of General Services will move 

promptly to obtain complete possession and control of the tapes and 

materials and to discharge his other duties under the law. 

A search will be underway shortly to recruit Presidential 

appointees to the "Public Documents Commission". I am hopeful that 

the commission will be able to suggest even-handed and uniform rules 

governing the documents of all Federal officials. 
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SECOND NIXON PHONE CALL 

The President called former Pfesident Nixon on July 12 and 
spoke from 140 p.m. to 145 p.m. He inquired about Mrs. Nixon's 
health. 

They previously spoke on July 8, the day Mrs. Nixon was 
hospitalized. 



Honora'Qle Arthur F. Sampson 
Administrator 

September 6, 1974 

General Services Administration 
Washington, D. C. 

Dear Mr. Sampson: 

In keeping with the tradition established by other former 
Presidents, it is my desire to donate to the United States, at a future 
date, a substantial portion of my Presidential materials which are of 
bis+-orical value to our Country. In donating these Presidential 
materials to the United States, it will be my desire that they be made 
available, with appropriate restrictions, for research and study. 

In the interim, so that my materials may be preserved, 
I offer to transfer to the Administrator of General Services (the 
11Administratorn), for deposit, pursuant to 44 U.S. C. Section 2101, 
!:.!. seg .• all of my Presidential histo1·ical materials as defined in 
44 U.S. C. Section 2101 (hereinafter nMaterials't), which are located 
within the metropolitan area of the District of Columbia, subject to 
the following: 

1. The Administrato1· agrees to accept solely for 
the purpose of deposit the transfer of the Materials, 
and in so accepting the Materials agrees to abide 
by each of the terms and conditions contained herein. 

2. In the event of my death prior to the expiration of 
the three-year time period established in para­
graph 7 A hereof, the terms and conditions contained 
herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the executor of my estate for the duration of 
said period. 

3. I retain all legal and equitable title to the Materials, 
including all literary prop.erty rights. 
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4. The Materials shall, upon acceptance of this 
offer by the Administrator, be deposited 
temporarily in an existing facility belonging 
to the United States, located within the State 
of California near my present residence. The 
Materials shall remain deposited in the temporary 
California facility until such time as there may be 
established, with my approval, a permanent 
Presidential archival depository as provided for 
in 44 U.S. C. Section 2108. 

5. The Administrator shall provide in such 
temporary depository and in any permanent 
Presidential archival depository reasonable 
office space for my personal use in accordance 
with 44 U.S. C. Section 2108 (f). The Materials 
in their entirety shall be deposited within such 
office space in the manner described in para­
graph 6 hereof. 

6. Within both the temporary and any permanent 
Presidential archival depository, all of the 
Materials shall be placed within secure storage 
areas to which access can be gained only by use 
of two keys. One key, essential for access, shall 
be given to me alone as custodian of the Materials. 
The other key may be duplicated and entrusted by 
you to the Archivist of the United States or to 
members of his staff. 

7. Access to the Materials within the secure areas, 
with the exception of recordings of conversations 
in the White House and the Executive Office 
Building which are governed by paragraphs 8 and 9 
hereof, shall be as follows: 

', 
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A. For a period of three years from the date 
of this instrument, I agree not to withdraw 
from deposit any originals of the Materials, 
except as provided in subparagraph B below 
and paragraph 10 herein. During said three­
year period, I may make reproductions of 
any of the originals of the Materials and 
withdraw from deposit such reproductions 
for any use I may deem appropriate. Except 
as provided in subparagraph B below, access 
to the Materials shall be limited to myself, 
and to such persons as I may authorize from 
time to time in writing, the scope of such 
access to be set forth by me in each said 
written authorization. ·· Any request for 
access to the Materials made to the Administra­
tor, the Archivist of the United States or any 
member of their staffs shall be referred to me. 
After three years I shall have the right to 
withdraw from deposit without formality any 
or all of the Materials to which this paragraph 
applies and to retain such withdrawn Materials 
for any purpose or use I may deem appropriate, 
including but not limited to reproduction, 
examination, publication or display by myself 
or by anyone else I may approve. 

B. In the event that production of the Materials 
or any portion thereof is demanded by a 
subpoena or other order directed to any 
official or employee of the United States, 
the recipient of the subpoena or order shall 
irrrrnediately notify me so that I may respond 
thereto, as the owner and custodian of the 
Materials, with sole right and power of access 
thereto and, if appropriate, assert any privilege 
or defense I may have. Prior to any such 
production, I shall inform the United States 
so it may inspect the subpoenaed materials 
and determine whether to object to its pro­
duction on grounds of national security or 
any other privilege. 
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the recipient of the subpoena or order 
shall imn1ediately notify me so that I 
may respond thereto, as the owner and 
custodian of the lv1a tcrials, with sole right 
and power of access thereto and, if appro­
priate, assert any privilege or defense I 
may have. Prior to any such production, 
I shall inform the United States so it may 
inspect the subpoenaed materials and 
determine <whether to object to its pro­
duction on grounds of national security 
or any other privilege. 

10. The Administrator shall arrange and be responsible 
for the reasonable protection of the Materials from 
.loss, destruction or access by unauthorized persons, 
and may upon receipt of an appropriate written 
authorization frmn the Counsel to the President 
provide for a temporary re-deposit of certain of 
the Materials to a location other than the e:;.d.sting 
facility described in paragraph 4 herein, provided 
however that no dhnunition of the Ad:ministrator 1s 
responsibility to protect and secure the Materials 
from loss, destruction, unauthorized copying or 
access by unauthorized persons is affected by said 
temporary re-deposit. 

11. From time to time as I deem appropriate, I intend 
to donate to the United States certain portions of 
the Materials deposited with the Administrator 
pursuant to this agreement, such donations to be 
accompanied by appropriate restrictions as authorized 
by 44 U.S. C. Section 2107. However, prior to such 
donation, it will be necessary to review the Materials 
to determine which of them should be subject to 
restriction, and the nature of the restrictions to be 
imposed. This review will require a meticulous, 
thorough, time-consuming analysis. If necessary 
to fulfill this task, I will request that you designate 
certain members of the Archivist's staff to assist 
in this review under my direction. 
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WASHINGTON CUPI) -- A t•JHITE HOUSE SPOKES~1AN SAYS THE STATE OF 
RICHARD NIXON'S MENTAL AND PHYSICAL HEALTH WAS NOT A FACTOR IN 

PRESIDENT FORD'S DECISION TO GRANT A PARDON. 
"THE QUESTION OF HEALTH viAS NEVER DISCUSSED" At10NG SENIOR AIDES, 

I ID ACTING PRE'SS SECRETARY JOHN ~1 • HUSHEN. 
ON THE OTHER HAND, AN OLD AND CLOSE FRIEND OF FORD'S, SEN. ROBERT 

P. GRIFFIN, R-MICH.L SAID: "I HAVE NO DOUBT IN MY OWN MIND THAT THE 
CONDITION OF THE HEA TH OF THE FORMER PRESIDENT WAS A FACTOR IN THE 

ffiESIDENT' S MIND IN REACHING HIS DEC! SION." 
ALL THAT WAS KNOWN OFFICIALLY vJAS THAT AS FORD WAS TELLING THE 

NATION SUNDAY THAT "SERIOUS ALLEGATIONS AND ACCUSATIONS HANG LIKE A 
SWORD OVER OUR FORMER PRESIDENT'S HEAD," HE CHOSE TO DEPART FROM HIS 
TEXT TO 'ADD, "THREATENING HIS HEALTH." 

THE ADDITION ADDED FUEL TO RUMORS ALREADY FLYING ABOUT THE 
CAPITAL • HAD NIXON HAD AN EMOTIONAL SETBACK? PUBLISHED REPORTS LAST 
WEEK DESCRIBED Hir1 AS "DEEPLY DEPRESSED." 

REP. DAN KUYKENDALL, R-TENN ., tJHO RECEIVED A TELEPHONE CALL FROM 

N~i~~ ~~ ;~~~RA~~tsi~f~Tug~NJ~~~lb ;~o~F~I~H~Ef~~~~I~gNx~~s~I~ON 
HEALTH. IT TtJAS !10RE OF AN INTANGIBLE FEELING THAN A TANGIBLE ONE. 

"I WAS WORRIED BECAUSE IT WAS JUST A DEEP-SEATED FEELING OF 
CONCERN, AN OVERWHELMING FEELING OF SADNESS. IT IS BEYOND ME HOW ANY 

MAN CAN STAND THE STRESS THAT HE HAS ALREADY STOOD. HE EXPRESSED THIS 
CONCERN TO ME WHEN HE SAID, 'WE HAVE OUR PROBLEMS.'" 

HUSHEN SAID THE WHITE HOUSE HAD NOTHING TO INDICATE THAT NIXON HAD 
AN E.MOTIONAL SETBACK. "THE REPORTS WE GET ARE TO THE CONTRARY," HE 
SAID, BUT NOTED THAT FORD HAD RECEIVED OTHER REPORTS ON A SECOND AND 
THIRD-HAND BASIS. 

NIXON AND HIS ~VIFE WERE RESTING AT THE PALM DESERT, CALIF. ESTATE 
OF WALTER ANNENBERG, THE AMBASSADOR TO GREAT BRITAIN. 

~HLLIAM LUKASH, FORD'S DOCTOR WHO PREVIOUSLY SERVED UNDER NIXON, 
SAID THAT TO THE BEST OF HIS KNOWLEDGE THE FORMER PRESIDENT WAS 

GETTING ALONG FINE • 
UPI 09-10 03:33 AED 
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PRESS CONFERENCE NO. 2 

of the 

PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES 

8:00 P.M. EDT 
September 16, 1974 
Monday 

In the East Room 
At the White House 
Washington, D.C. 

THE PRESIDENT: Please sit down. 

Ladies and gentlemen, this press conference is 
being held at a time when many Americans are observin~ the 
Jewish religious new year. It be~ins a period of self­
examination and reconciliation. In opening this press 
conference, I am mindful that the spirit of this bol? day 
has a meaning for all Americans. 

In examining one's deeds of the last year and 
in assuming responsibility for past actions and personal 
decisions, one can reach a point of growth and change. The 
purpose of looking back is to go forward with a new and 
enlightened dedication to our hi~hest values. 

The record of the past year does not have to 
be endlessly relived, but can be transformed by commitment 
to new insights and new actions in the year to come. 

Ladies and ~entlemen, I am ready for your 
questions. 

Mr. Cormier. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, some Congressional 
Republicans who have talked to you have hinted that you 
may have had a secret reason for granting President Nixon 
a pardon sooner than you indicated you would at the last 
news conference, and I wonder if you could tell us what 
that reason was. 

THE PRESIDENT: At the outset, let me say I 
had no secret reason, and I don't recall telling any 
Republican that I had such a reason. Let me review quickly, 
if I might, the things that transpired followin~ the last 
news conference. 

. \ 
I 

MORE 



Page 2 

As many of you know, I answered two, maybe 
three questions concerning a pardon at that time. On 
return to the office, I felt that I had to have my counsel 
undertake a thorough examination as to what my ri~ht of 
pardon was under the Constitution. I also felt that 
it was very important that I find out what legal actions, 
if any, were contemplated by the Special Prosecutor. 

That information was found out, and it was 
indicated to me that the possibility exists, the very 
real possibility that the President would be charged with 
obstructing justice and ten other possible criminal 
actions. 

In addition, I asked my general counsel to 
find out,if he could, how long such criminal proceedings 
would take, from the indictment, the carrying on of the 
trial, et cetera, and I was informed that this would 
take a year, maybe somewhat longer, for the whole process 
to go through. 

I also asked my counsel to find out whether 
or not under decisions of the judicial system a fair 
trial would be given to the former President. 

After I got that information, which took two 
or three days, I then began to evaluate, in my own mind, 
whether or not I should take the action, which I 

· subsequently did. 

Miss Thomas. 

MORE 
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QUESTION: Throughout your Vice Presidency, 
you said that you didn't believe that former President 
Nixon had ever committed an impeachable offense. Is 
that still your belief or do you believe that his 
acceptance of a pardon implies his guilt, or is an 
admission of guilt? 

THE PRESIDENT: The fact that 38 members of 
the House· Committee on the Judiciary, Democrat and 
Republican, have unanimously agreed in the report that 
was filed that the former President was guilty of an 
impeachable offense, I think is very persuasive 
evidence. 

And the eecond_question, I don't recall 

QUESTION: An admission of guilt? 

THE PRESIDENT: Was the acceptance of the 
pardon by the President an admission of guilt? The 
acceptance of a pardon, I think, can be construed by 
many, if not all, as an admission of guilt. 

Yes, Mr. Nessen. 

QUESTION: What reports have you received on 
Mr. Nixon's health, and what effect, if any, did this 
have on your decision to pardon him now? 

THE PRESIDENT: I have asked Dr. Lukash, who 
is the head physician in the White House,to keep me 
posted in proper channels as to the former President's 
health. I have been informed on a routine day-to-day 
basis, but I don't think I am at liberty to give any 
information as to those reports that I have received. 

You also asked \vhat impact did the President's 
health have on my decision. I think it is well known 
that just before I gave my statement at the time that 
I gave the pardon I personally wrote in a phrase "the 
threat to the President's health." 

The main concern that I had at the time I made 
the decision was to heal the wounds throughout the 
United States. For a period of 18 months or longer, we 
had had turmoil and divisiveness in the American society. 
At the same time, the United States had major problems 
both at home and abroad that needed the maximum personal 
attention of the President and many others in the Govern­
ment. 

It seemed to me that as long as this divisiveness 
continued, this turmoil existed, caused by the charges 
and counter charges, the responsible people in the 
Government could not give their total attention to the 
problems that we had to solve at home and abroad. 

MORE 
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And the net result was that I was more 
anxious to heal the Nation. That was the top priority. 
I felt then, and I feel now, that the action I took 
will do that. I couldn't be oblivious, however, to 
news accounts that I had concerning the President's health, 
but the major reason for the action.Itook related· to the 
effort to reconcile divisions in cur country and to 
heal the wounds that had festered far too long. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, after you had told us 
that you were going to allow the legal process to go on 
before you decided whether to pardon him, why did 
you decide on Sunday morning,abruptl~to pardon Presi­
dent·Nixon? 

THE PRESIDENT: I didn't decide abruptly. I 
explained a moment ago the process that I went through 
subsequent to the last press conference. When I had 
assembled all of that information that came to me 
through my counsel, I then most carefully analyzed the 
situation in the country and I decided that we could not 
afford in America an extended period of continued turmoil 
and the fact that the trial,- and all of the parts thereof, 
would have lasted a year -- perhaps more -- with the 
continuation of the drvisione in America, I felt that 
I should take the action that I did,promptly and 
effectively. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, I would like to ask you 
a question about the decision relating to custody of the 
Nixon tapes and documents. Considering the enormous 
interest that the Special Prosecutor's office had in 
those documents for further investigation, I am wondering 
why the negotiations with r1r. Nixon's representatives were 
conducted strictly between the counsel in your office 
without bringing in discussions with either Mr. Jaworski's 
representatives or those from the Justice Department. 

THE PRESIDENT: In the first place, I did receive 
a memorandum, or legal opinion, from the Department of 
Justice which indicated that in the opinion of the 
Department of Justice, the documents, tapes, the 
ownership of them were in the hands of the former 
President. Historically, that has been the case for all 
Presidents. 

Now, the negotiations for the handling of the 
tapes and documents were undertaken and consummated by my 
staff and the staff of the former President. I believe 
t·hat they have been properly preserved and they will be 
available under subpoena for any criminal proceeding. 
Now, the Special Prosecutor's staff has indicated some 
concern. I am saying tonight that my staff is working with 
the Special Prosecutor's staff to try and alleviate 
any concerns that they have. I hope a satisfactory 
arrangement can be worked out. 
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QUESTION: Mr. President, during your 
confirmation hearings as Vice President, you said that 
you did not think that the country would stand for a 
President to pardon his predecessor. Has your mind-been 
changed about such public opinion? 

THE PRESIDENT: In those hearings before 
the Senate Committee on Rules and Administration, I 
was asked a hypothetical question, and in answer to 
that hypothetical question I responded by saying that 
I did not think the American people would stand for such 
an action. 

Now that I am in the White House and don't 
have to answer hypothetical questions but have to 
deal with reality, it was my judgment, after analyzing 
all of the facts, that it was in the best interest of 
the United States for me to take the action that I did. 

I think if you will reread what I said in 
answer to that hypothetical question, I did not say I 
wouldn't. I simply said that under the way the question 
was phrased, the American people would object. 

But I am absolutely convinced when dealing with 
reality in this very, very ·.difficult situation, that 
I made the right decision in an effort, an honest, 
conscientious effort, to end the divisions and the 
turmoil in the United States. 

Mr. Lisagor. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, is there any safe­
guard in the tapes agreement that was made with Mr. Nixon, 
first,with their destruction in the event anything 
happens to him, because under the agreement they will 
be destroyed, and secondly, should not the tapes be 
kept in the White House until the Special Prosecutor has 
finished dealing with them? 

THE PRESIDENT: The tapes and the documents 
are still in our possession and we are, as I said a 
moment ago, working with the Special Prosecutor's office, 
to alleviate any concerns they have as to their disposition 
and their availability. 

' The agreemeni as to destruction is quite clear-
cut. As long as Mr. Nixon is alive and during the 
period of time that is set forth, they are available for 
subpoena by a court involving any criminal proceedings. 
I think this is a necessary requirement for the protection 
of evidence for any such action. 
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QUESTION: Mr. President, recent Congress­
ional testimony has indicated that the CIA, under the 
direction of a committee headed by Dr. Kissinger, 
attempted to destablize the Government of Chile under 
former President Allende~ 

Is it the policy of your Administration to 
attempt to destabilize the ~overnments of other 
democracies? 

THE PRESIDENT: Let me answer in general. I 
think this is a very important question. 

Our Government, like other governments, does 
take certain actions in the intelligence field to help 
implement foreign policy and protect national security. I 
am informed reliably that Communist nations spend vastly 
more money than we do for the same kind of purposes. 

Now, in this particular case, as'I understand 
it, and there is no doubt in my mind,our Government had no 
involvement whatsoever in the Allende coup. To my 
knowledge, nobody has charged that. The facts are we had 
no involvement in any way whatsoever in ~he coup itself. 

In a period of time, three or four years ago, 
there was an effort being made by the Allende government 
to destroy opposition news media, both the writing press 
as well as the electronic press,and to destroy opposition 
political parties. 

The effort that was made in this case was 
to help and assist the preservation of opposition news­
papers and electronic media and to preserve opposition 
political parties. 

I think this is in the best interest of the 
people in Chile, and certainly in our best interest. 

Now, may I add one further comment. 

The 40 committee was established in 1948. It 
has been ·in existence under Presidents since that time. 
That committee reviews every covert operation undertaken 
by our Government, and that information is relayed to the 
responsible Congressional committees where it is reviewed 
by House and Senate committees. 

It seems to me that the 40 committee should 
continue in existence, and I am going to meet with the 
responsible Congressional committees to see whether or 
not they want any changes in the review process so that 
the Congress, as well as the President, are fully informed 
and are fully included in the operations for any such 
action. 
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QUESTION: In view of public reaction, do 
you think the Nixon pardon really served to bind up the 
Nation's wounds? I wonder if you would assess public 
reaction to that move. 

THE PRESIDENT: I must say that the decision 
has created more antagonism than I anticipated. But as 
I look over the long haul with a trial or several trials 
of a former President, criminal trials, the 
possibility of a former President being in the dock so 
to speak, and the divisions that would have existed not 
just for a limited period of time, but for a long 
period of time, it seems to me that when I had the 
choice between 'that possibility and the possibility of 
taking direct action hoping to conclude it, I am 
still convinced, despite the public reaction so far, that 
the decision I made was the right one. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, in regard to the 
pardon, you talk about the realities of the situation. 
Now those realities rightly or ~ongly included a good 
many people who speculate aecut whether or not there is 
some sort of arrangement -- even some of them call a deal 
between you and the former President or between your staff 
and his staff, resignation in exchange for a full pardon. 

The question is: Is there or was there, to 
your knowledge, any kind of understanding, about this? 

THE PRESIDENT: There was no understanding, no 
deal between me and the former President, nor between my 
staff and the staff of the former President, none 
whatsoever. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, there is a bill that 
the Treasury Department has put forward, I think it is 
about 38 pages. Under this bill, which deals with getting 
hold of the returns, Internal Revenue returns of the 
citizens of the country, you could take action to get those 
returns whenever you wanted to. 

I wonder if you are aware of this, and if you 
feel that you need to get those returns of citizens. 
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THE PRESIDENT: It is my understanding that a 
President has, by tradition and practice, and by law, 
the right to have access to income tax returns. I 
personally think that is something that should be kept 
very closely held. A person's income tax return is 
a very precious thing to that individual and, therefore, 
I am about to issue an Executive Order that makes it even 
more restrictive as to how those returns can be handled 
and I do think that a proposed piece of legislation that is 

coming to me and subsequently will be submitted, as I 
recollect, to the Congress would also greatly tighten up 
the availability or accessibility of income tax returns. 
I think they should be closely held and I can assure 
you that they will be most judiciously handled as far as I 
am concerned. 

Yes. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, looking beyond the Nixon 
papers and·in view of some criticism in Cgngre~s~ do you believe 
we may have now reached the point where Presidential 
White House papers should remain in the Government's 
hands as the property of the Government? 

THE PRESIDENT: As far as I am personally 
concerned, I can see a legitimate reason for Presidential 
papers remaining the property of the Government. In my 
own case, I made a decision some years ago to turn over 
all of my Congressional papers, all of my Vice Presidential 
papers to the University of Michigan archives. 

As far as I am concerned, whether they go to the 
archives for use or whether they stay the possession of the 
Government, I don't think it makes too much difference. 

I have no desire, personally, to retain whatever 
papers come out of my Administration. 

Mr. Mollenhoff. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, at the last press 
conference you said, "The code of ethics that will be 
followed will be the example that I set.n Do you find 
anyco~ets of interest in the decision to grant a 
sweeping pardon to your life-long friend and your 
financial benefactor with no consultation for advice 
and judgment for the legal fallout? 

THE PRESIDENT: The decision to grant a pardon 
to Mr. Nixon was made primarily, as I have expressed, for 
the purpose of trying to heal the wounds throughout the 
country between Americans on one side of the issue or the 
other. Mr. Nixon nominated me for the office of Vice 
President. I was confirmed overwhelmingly in the House 
as well as in the Senate. Every action I have taken, 
Mr. Mollenhoff, is predicated on my conscience without 
any concern or consideration as to favor as far as I am 
concerned. 
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Yes. 

QUESTION: If your intention was to heal the 
wounds of the Nation, sir, why did you grant only a 
conditional amnesty to the Vietnam war veterans while 
granting a full pardon to President Nixon? 

THE PRESIDENT: The only connection between those 
two cases is the effort that I made in the one to heal 
the wounds involving the charges against Mr. Nixon and my 
honest and conscientious effort to heal the wounds 
for those who had deserted military service or dodged the 
draft. That is the only connection between the two. 

In one case, you have a President who was forced 

~ 
to resign because of circumstances involving his Administra­
tion and he has been shamed and disgraced by that resigna­
tion. In the case of the draftdodgers and Army and 
military deserters, we are trying to heal the wounds by 
the action that I took with the signing of the proclama-
tion this morning. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, another concern that has 
been voiced around the country since the pardon is that 
the judicial process as it finally unwinds may not write 
the definitive chapter on Watergate and perhaps with par­
ticular regard to Mr. Nixon's particular involvement, 
however total, however it may have been in truth. My 
question is, would you consider appointing a special 
commission with extraordinary powers to look into all of the 
evidentiary material and to write that chapter and not 
leave it to later history? 

THE PRESIDENT: Well, it seems to me as I look 
at what has been done, I think you find a mass of evidence 
that has been accummulated. In the first instance, you 
have the very intensive investigation conducted by the 
House Committee on the Judiciary. It was a very well­
conducted investigation. It came up with valumes of 
information. 

In addition, the Special Prosecutor's office 
under Mr. Jaworski has conducted an intensive investigation 
and the Special Prosecutor's office will issue a report at 
the conclusion of their responsibilities that I think will 
probably make additional information available to the 
American people. 

And thirdly, as the various criminal trials proceed 
in the months ahead, there obviously will be additional 
information made available to the American people. So, 
when you see what has been done and what undoubtedly 
will be done, I think the full story will be made available 
to the American people. 
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QUESTION: Mr. President, could you give us an 
idea who would succeed General Haig,and how are you 
coming on your search for a Press Secretary? 

THE PRESIDENT: Do I have a lot of candidates 
here? (Laughter) No shows. (Laughter) 

I have several people in mind to replace 
General Haig, but I have made no decision on that. It 
was just announced today that the NATO countries have 
accepted him as the officer handling those responsibilities. 

I think he is to take office succeeding General 
Goodpaster on December 15. He assumes his responsi­
bilities as the head of u.s. military forces November 1. 
In the next few days undoubtedly I will make the decision 
as to the individual to succeed him. 

So far as the Press Secretary is concerned, 
we are actively working on that and we hope to have an 
announcement in a relatively short period of time. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, prior to your deciding 
to pardon Mr. Nixon, did you have, apart from those 
reports, any information either from associations of the 
President or from his family or from any other source 
about his health, about his medical condition? 

THE PRESIDENT: Prior to the decision that I 
made granting a pardon to Mr. Nixony I had no other 
specific information concerning his health other than 
what I·had read in the news .media or heard in the news 
media. I had not gotten any information from any of the 
Nixon family. The sole souree was what I had read in 
the news media plus one other fact. 

On Saturday before the Sunday a member of my 
staff was working with me on the several decisions I 
had to make. He was, from my staff, the one who had 
been in negotiations on Friday with the President and 
his staff • 

. At the conclusion of decisions that were made, 
I asked him, how did the President look, and he reported 
to me his observations. 

But other than what I had read or heard and 
this particular incident, I had no precise information 
concerning the President's health. 

I 
I 
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QUESTION: Mr. President, your own economic 
advisers are suggesting that to save the economy which 
is very bad and very pessimistic, we are hearing the 
word "depression" used now. I wonder how you feel about 
whether we are heading for a depression? 

THE PRESIDENT: Let me say very strongly that 
the United States is not going to have a depression. The 
overall economy of the United States is strong. Employment 
is still high. We do have the problem of inflation. We 
do have related problems, and we aregping to come up with 
some answers that I hope will solve those problems. 

We are not going to have a depression. We are 
going to work to make sure that our economy improves in"the 
months ahead. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, in the face of massive 
food shortages and the prospects of significant starvation, 
will the United States be able to significantly increase its 
food aid to foreign countries, and what is our position 
going to be at the Rome conference on participation in 
the world grain reserves? 

THE PRESIDENT: Within the next few days a 
very major decision in this area will be made. I am not 
at liberty to tell you what the answer will be because 
it has not been decided. 

But it is my hope that the United States for 
humanitarian purposes will be able to increase its 
contribution to those nations that have suffered because 
of drought or any of the other problems related to human 
needs. 
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QUESTION: Back to the CIA, under what inter­
national law do we have a right to attempt to destablize the 
constitutionally-elected government of another country, 
and does the Soviet Union have a similar right to try 
to destabilize the Government of Canada, for example, or 
the United States? 

THE PRESIDENT: I am not going to pass judgment 
on whether it is permitted or authorized under 
international law. It is a recognized fact that historically, 
as well as presently, such actions are taken in the best 
interest of the countries involved. 

QUESTION: Mr. President, last month when you 
assumed the Presidency, you pledged openness and candor. 
Last week you decided on the ex-President's pardon in 
virtually total secrecy. Despite all you have said tonight, 
there would still seem to be some confusion, some 
contradiction. 

My question is this: Are the watchwords of 
your Administration still openness and candor? 

THE PRESIDENT: Without any question, without 
any reservation. And I think in the one instance that 
you cite, it was a sole decision, and believe me, it 
wasn't easy, and since I was the only one who could make 
that decision, I thought I had to search my own soul 
after consulting with a limited number of people, and I 
did it, and I think in the longrun it was the right 
decision. 

THE PRESS: Thank you, Mr. President. 

END (AT 8:30P.M. EDT) 
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MR. HUSHEN: Good morning. We seem to have 
a full house today. 

Let me just go quickly through the announce-
ments. 

Last evening before making the campaign 
appearance on behalf of Congressman Stanford Parris, 
the President met for an hour with Indian Foreign 
Minister, Swaran Singh. As you know, this was the 
first opportunity for the President to meet with a 
high level Indian official since assuming office, 
and the first such Presidential contact since Prime 
Minister Ghandi's visit in November of 1971. 

The President and Mr. Singh took this 
opportunity to have a wide-ranging discussion of issues 
of interest to both sides in the field of foreign policy. 
That includes South Asia, bilateral relations and a 
discussion of Secretary Kissinger's trip to that area 
next month. 

The President expressed support for the 
continued strengthening of relations between India 
and the United States. 

The President got started early this morning 
at 7:45 and has been meeting with staff members, 
including.Al Haig, Secretary Kissinger, General 
Scowcroft, Phil Buchen. 

Due to the fact that he met for about 45 
minutes this morning with Senator Henry Jackson to 
discuss the trade bill, I was not able to see the 
President prior to coming out here. 
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The only guidance I can give you on the 
meeting between the President and Senator Jackson was 
that it was, as I said, to discuss further efforts 
to achieve an acceptable trade bill. Progress 
continues to be made as a result of these discussions 
but I have nothing more that I can give you on that. 
Secretary Kissinger did sit in on that meeting. 

At 1:30 this afternoon, the President will 
meet with Mr. David Rockefeller to discuss Mr. 
Rockefeller's proposal for a national development 
bank which would assist in creating new communities 
and redeveloping older cities. We will see if we 
can't get you something more on that after the meeting. 

At 2:30 this afternoon, the President will 
meet with the Governor of Puerto Rico, Rafael Hernandez­
Colon. Prior to that meeting, Governor Colon will 
meet with members of the Domestic Council. The Governor 
wants to talk to the President about matters of general 
concern to the people in the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico. 

Then at 3:30 this afternoon, the President 
will meet with a group of his economic advisers to 
receive an update on the proceedings of the meetings 
leading up to the summit conference on inflation which, 
as I think you all know, will be held next Friday and 
Saturday. 

As far as tomorrow goes, I can't give you 
the full schedule yet, but at 11:00 the President will 
meet with Alberto Juan Vicente Vignes, the Argentine 
Minister of Foreign Relations. The Foreign Minister 
is here in the United States for the U.N. General 
Assembly session and the President wanted to take this 
opportunity to discuss with him hemispheric relations 
and other matters of mutual concern. 

Q Would that include Cuba? 

MR. HUSHEN: Hemispheric relations. 

Q About what? 

MR. HUSHEN: Then,as we previously announced, 
the President will meet at 5:30 P.M. tomorrow with 
Prime Minister Tanaka of Japan, also in the Oval Office. 
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Looking ahead to Monday, the President will 
depart the White House for Detroit to address the 
World Energy Conference at about 8:15 A.M. Then he 
is scheduled about 11:00 A.M., and we hope to have 
an advance text for you either Sunday or on the plane 
Monday. 

The President's departure time will require 
a press check-in at Andrews at 7:00A.M., with a 
7:30 departure for Detroit. I don't have any other 
detailed times yet, but I think I said yesterday, I 
expect the President to be returning to the White House 
in the early afternoon and there are no other visits 
scheduled in connection with the trip. 

We will have the detailed schedule tomorrow, 
hopefully. 

I have several other announcements that I 
want to get through here. The President is announcing 
the appointment of William E. Casselman, II, as an 
additional Counsel to the President. Casselman will 
serve along with Phillip Areeda as one of the two 
senior Counsel to the President and associated with 
Philip Buchen, who is Counsel to the President with 
Cabinet rank. 

The President will nominate Daniel Minchew 
of Baxley, Georgia, to be a member of the United States 
Tariff Commission for the remainder of the term expiring 
June 16, 1976. 

The President is announcing the appointment of 
Clyde S. DuPont of Alexandria, Virginia, to be a 
Commissioner of the Postal Rate Commission for the 
remainder of the term expiring October 14, 1974. 

The President is announcing the reappointment 
of Addie J. Key of Baltimore, Maryland, as a member of 
the Board of Advisers of the Federal Reformatory for 
Women. We will post information on that appointment. 

You have the memorandum from the President 
to heads of departments and agencies in which he reaffirms 
his belief in the career civil service system,and the 
integrity· of the civil servants and wanted to let the 
heads of the executive departments and agencies know 
where he stands. 
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The President has also signed an Executive 
Order which you have and which he referred to in his 
press conference this week. This Executive Order is 
self-explanatory, but you do have a fact sheet on it. 

The Order sets forth the strict and legally­
binding procedures by which the President's access will be 
governed as well as access by members of the staff to 
tax records. 

Under this Order, the President must personally 
specify. in writing the returns desired and must personally 
designate in writing the member of his staff who is 
authorized to see the returns in his behalf. 
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Q Does he have to say why he wants to 
see the return and why not if he doesn't? 

MR. HUSHEN: Does he have to say why he 
wants to see the returns? 

Q Yes. 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't think so. I think he 
just has to designate that he wants to see them. 

Q Jack, can't he simply set that aside by 
another Executive Order of his own or a waiver? What 
is the effect of an Executive Order when he issues 
it only himself? 

MR. HUSHEN: I think it certainly indicates 
to the public how he feels about the situation. 

Q Does it have any legallybinding effect 
on him if he changes his mind and wants to see someone's 
tax return? 

MR. HUSHEN: I think you can always change your 
Executive Orders, but I think what he is obviously stating 
here is what his policy is going to be. 

Q Is he saying that no subordinate can 
order an income tax return without the President's 
knowledge? Is that what he is saying? 

MR. HUSHEN: That is correct. 

Q Does he still favor the legislation 
which would in effect prevent him from doing this kind of 
thing? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don'tknow what his position 
is on that. 

Q Jack, would behave to issue another 
public Executive Order to change this? 

MR. HUSHEN: I believe so. 

Q Why did he take this action? 

MR. HUSHEN: He indicated in his press 
conference how he felt about it. 

Q I mean, does it come from any abuses 
that he knows of? (Laughter) 

MR. HUSHEN: You have been around here long 
enough. 
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Q That is a legitimate question. 

Q No, I want to ask you why. 

MR. HUSHEN: I think he has seen what 
has happened in the past, and I think he wants to 
make it very clear that it is not going to happen 
in the future, at least not as long as he is in 
the White House. 

Q Will the file records on any requests 
for inspection of these returns be open for examination 
by any Members of Congress or just simply the public 
in any fashion, or will that be a secret file? 

MR. HUSHEN: Do you mean the designations of 
approval? 

Q Yes. 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know whether that would 
be open or not. I am sure we can get you an answer 
to that. 

Q Congressional committees can see tax 
records if the President approves, if the President 
issues an Executive Order? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know. 

Q Jack, there are several Congressional 
committees that have blanket authority to see taxpayer's 
records under present law. Does this have any effect 
on that? 

MR. HUSHEN: I thought that was the case. 

Q Does this have any effect on that at 
all? 

MR. HUSHEN: This would, I believe, be an 
order that would only affect the Executive Branch. 

Q Can you explain why the President would 
want to visit a country like South Korea, which is 
becoming increasingly dictatorial and a regime where 
the government is under fire and under attack for 
undemocratic steps? 

MR. HUSHEN: South Korea has been a long­
standing ally of this country, and the United States 
has important security interests in that area, and he 
believes that talks with Mr. Park will be useful. 
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Q Did he think about it; I mean, did he 
weigh these considerations? 

MR. HUSHEN: I am not privy to all of the 
information that went into this trip. 

Q Is there any special worry about 
security arrangements there in view of the 
assassination attempt? 

MR. HUSHEN: There is always a concern for 
security of the President, but I know of no unusual 
precautions. 

Q Jack, do you expect different stops, 
if there are additional stops, to be announced piece­
meal on this trip? 

MR. HUSHEN: If there are any additional 
stops --and I don't know of any right now-- they would 
be announced as they are firmed up. 

Q Does that mean South Korea was firmed 
up yesterday? 

MR. HUSHEN: Yes. 

Q Does it mean 

MR. HUSHEN: That was in answer to Cliff's 
question, not yours. 

Q Are there any additional trips contem-
plated, not at this time, additional stops, I mean? 

Q Does the President consider this trip 
an endorsement of the Park regime? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't think you have to 
view it that way. He is going to be in Japan. As 
I said before, South Korea has been a long and strong 
ally. 

Q Jack, does that mean that he will not 
be using his tickets to the Ohio State-Michigan game? 

MR. HUSHEN: Do you want them? 

Q Yes. 

MR. HUSHEN: Is that the date? 

Q The 23rd. 
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Q Was there any talk about him going to 
India during that talk last night? 

MR. HUSHEN: I have no guidance for you on 
that. 

Q Jack, when Senator Jackson left here 
this morning he said, if I understand him correctly, 
that the President was going to meet with Mr. Gromyko 
again on Tuesday. Do you know anything about that? 

MR. HUSHEN: Well, that may have been discussed. 
The meetings that have gone on this morning have been 
virtually non-stop and I don't know. 

Q Jack, has the President had any conversa-
tions with Attorney General Saxbe lately about several 
matters: about the increased crime rate around the 
country; the fact that the Justice Department has, on a 
non-stop basis, been losing political cases; and, 
third, about three investiga~s that are underway 
at LEAA including one that has to do with consultant­
ships and alleged abuse of the Civil Service laws? 

Has he talked to Saxbe about any of those 
matters? 

MR. HUSHEN: The only conversation I am 
aware that the President has had with the Attorney 
General recently has been in connection with the 
conditional amnesty program. 

Q Jack, the Venezuelan president has 
taken offense at the President's speech to the U.N. on 
oil producing countries and he sent a 2,000-word cable. 
Do you have any response to that? 

MR. HUSHEN: I do not. 

Q Jack, what prompted the President's 
memorandum to departments and agencies about Civil 
Service employees? 

MR. HUSHEN: I think it has been something 
that he had been planning to say. I think the statement 
speaks for itself in the sense that he has a high 
regard for the civil servants and will not tolerate 
any abuse of that system. 
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Q Did it have any connection with his 
request for deferring the pay raise? 

MR. HUSHEN: Absolutely not. 

Q Did it have any connection with 
the front page Star News report yesterday? 

MR. HUSHEN: No, this has been in the works 
for a long time, much longer than the series of stories. 

Q Does it relate to any abuses he thinks 
may have occurred during the previous Administration? 

MR. HUSHEN: He just wants to state his 
position. 

Let me just mention something that I slipped 
by regarding our announcements of visits of foreign 
dignitaries. President Ford will meet with Australian 
Prime Minister, E. Gough Whitlam, Friday, October 4. 
The Prime Minister will be visiting Washington after 
his attendance at the General Assembly in New York. 

And I have one addition to the President's 
schedule for today. About 3:25 P.M. the President 
will meet with Andrew May, who will be retiring in 
mid-November as the office manager and assignment 
editor in the Photo Office here in the White House. 

Most of you know Buck May so I will not 
enumerate his many activities and accomplishments. 
This will be a photo session. 

Q Does the President endorse Mr. Greenspan's 
statements to the summit meeting yesterday, the HEW 
meeting yesterday? 

MR. HUSHEN: Well, if you look at everything 
that Mr. Greenspan said --

Q Do we have to? (Laughter) 

MR. HUSHEN: I think he was addressing the 
wrong audience. (Laughter) 

The President is on the record as saying 
that inflation hits hardest the people on the fixed 
incomes. What Mr. Greenspan was pointing out was 
purely a statistical fact which would stand by itself. 

It is not a matter of endorsing that fact 
or the statement. 
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I think the President is fully on record 
as to his feelings about inflation and how it hurts 
everybody but most importantly those who are on a 
fixed income. 

Q Does the President have any initial 
feeling on the new cost of living figures announced 
today, the highest in a year? 

MR. HUSHEN: I can't give you anything on that. 

Q Jack, this statement on Civil Service 
seems to be just restating what has been in the law for a 
number of years. If it is not related to any abuses, 
does the President plan to issue similar statements on 
other laws that he thinks should be obeyed? (Laughter) 

MR. HUSHEN: The President just wanted to 
go on recor•d as to what he feels about the Civil Service 
system and the quality of the employees. 

Q And he doesn't agree with President 
Nixon about the bureaucr~cies and impenetrable force? 

MR. HUSHEN: Well, you have what President 
Ford feels about it. 

Q Jack, is the President g~v~ng any 
attention to the fact of his appointments he has to 
make at some point to the Board of the new Legal Services 
Corporation? 

MR. HUSHEN: Yes, he is. I think that matter 
is close to being announced. 

Q Jack, who is going to succeed General 
Haig? 

MR. HUSHEN: I have nothing I can give you on 
that tod~y. 

Q When do you anticipate there will be 
an announcement on that? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know. As I mentioned, I 
wasn't able to talk to the President this morning. 

Q Do you know when General Haig leaves? 

MR. HUSHEN: It will be next week. 

Q The end of next week? 
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MR. HUSHEN: No, it will be some time next 
week. 

Q Has the President changed his position 
on the n ed for confirmation of Haig? 

MR. HUSHEN: No. 

Q And it still is that he doesn't need to 
be confi ed and won't be nominated? 

MR. HUSHEN: That is correct. 

Q I thought there was a formal request 
from a c ittee of the Senate to have General Haig 
come up answer questions. Will that be refused 
as far as the White House is concerned? 

MR. HUSHEN: Will it be reviewed or refused? 

Refused? 

• HUSHEN: Bill, I think we will just have 
at that request when it comes up. 

Q Jack, can you tell us who authorized 
and under what provisions Julie Eisenhower could fly 
by military plane to California? 

MR. HUSHEN: Mr. Gul~y, over in the Military 
Aide's Office, said yesterday to those who contacted him, 
it has been a long-standing policy to make available to 
former Presidents' families seats on courier planes that 
are traveling to the location of the former President 
to give him briefing materials and other things like 
that. 

And the Trumans took advantage of this, the 
Johnson daughters, so it is nothing unusual. 

Q Was there a courier plane taking briefing 
materials to the former President? 

MR. HUSHEN: That is correct. 

Q Briefing materials on what aspects of 
Government? 

MR. HUSHEN: Dick, I can't give you specifics 
on that but again this is the same policy that has been 
followed for ex-Presidents to keep them apprised of 
current issues. 
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Q How frequently do these briefing materials 
go out? Are they accompanied by a person who gives a 
personal briefing or is it just written materials? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know the answer to that. 

Q Is it a special plane or the regular East-
West courier plane from Andrews to San Bernardino? 

MR. HUSHEN: It is not a special plane. It is 
the regular courier plane. 

Q What else does it do? I mean, what is 
its regular duties other than dropping off these 
briefings? I mean, does it have other people that it 
drops off briefing matters to? 

MR. HUSHEN: I imagine it could be used for J 
anything, any Federal activity on the West Coast. 
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Q I was just wondering how much need there 
is for that. Is there a great deal of need to get Washington 
materials to some Federal agency on the West Coast that 
requires a flight out to the West Coast? 

MR. HUSHEN: I am sure we can get a definition of 
the activities in that regard for you. 

Q Can we find out, Jack, specifically what this 
airplane that carried Julie Eisenhower out, specifically 
what else it carried out? 

HR. HUSHEN: I think we probably can. 

Q Jack, have you seen information that this 
President has ordered that former President Nixon be kept 
up-to-date on foreign and domestic affairs through a 
private briefing? 

MR. HUSHEN: As I understand it, that is the standard 
practice for former Presidents. I don't know how detailed 
these briefings are, and I can't go into how great the 
information is that is given to them. 

Q Well, it seems to me that that is a fairly 
important issue. I wonder if there is a way we can find 
out who is doing the briefings and what information is being 
passed on to Mr. Nixon that the rest of us are not getting? 

MR. HUSHEN: I think we can try to give you some 
help in that area. 

Q Does Nixon send back any memos? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know. 

Q Do you know whether it is a packet of 
briefing papers or whether a personal aide went out? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know. 

I am informed that it can be either way, 
depending on the subject. 

Q Jack, did Dr. Tkach go out on that plane? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know who else was on that 
plane other than Julie Eisenhower. 

Q Could you find that out? 

MR. HUSHEN: Possibly. As you know, Tkach 
went out there last week. 

Q Yes, and I understand he went out yesterday 
or today. 

MR. HUSHEN: I will not guess at that. I haven't 
checked the manifest. 
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Q What is the thinking behind briefing of 
former Presidents? Is it to get advice from those former 
Presidents, or what? 

MR. HUSHEN: That is probably part of it. I 
didn't explore what the purpose of it was. We got the 
ea~riez about Julie Eisenhower and that is the only thing we 
went into. 

Q Does President Ford know in fact that President 
Nixon is being briefed? 

MR. HUSHEN: I believe so. As I said, it has been 
standard procedure to brief former Presidents. 

Q Jack, are you equating the departure of 
President Nixon with those of other former Presidents? 

MR. HUSHEN: What do you mean "equating"? 

Q Well, in your statement you make it sound 
like that is what you do for all former Presidents. 

MR. HUSHEN: I certainly wouldn't equate the 
way the former President left with other former Presidents, 
but he still is a former President. 

Q You said that papers or a person can fly 
out there to brief. Do you mean by that that someone has 
flown out there to brief the former President at some point? 

We MR. HUSHEN: They may have, I don't know. 
are in an area that I don't have that many facts on. 
obvious from my response to your questions that I am 
well briefed in this particular area. 

It is 
not 

Q Jack, could you fairly expeditiously 
locate someone who could perhaps give us some information 
on this because there ar.e a lot of holes right now. 

MR. HUSHEN: We will try to get you some more 
information. 

Q Jack, are you saying that there is material 
that is of such urgency that it can't be entrusted to the 
United States mail but has to be sent out by Air Force jet 
to Mr. Nixon? 

MR. HUSHEN: Let me see if we can't get some 
answers here. 

Q And also is any of it classified? 

Q And is Secretary Kissinger going to brief 
Nixon? I believe he did brief Johnson after Johnson 
left on several occasions. 

Q And is it correct this courier plane makes 
scheduled weekly stops once or twice a week there? 
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MR. HUSHEN: I think I read that. 

Q 
need for it. 

We would like to confirm that. 

MR. HUSHEN: Okay. 

#32 

I have a 

Q What kind of security stamp is on this 
material that the former President is getting? Does he 
still have "Top Secret" security clearance? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know. 

l 

THE PRESS: Thank you. _J 
(AT 12:30 P.M. #32 
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~R. HUSHEN: The President met this morning 
for two and a half hours with the Soviet Foreign 
Minister, Andrei Gromyko, who, as you know, was in 
the United States for the General Assembly meeting. 

The meeting was described as cordial in 
tone and provided for a very useful exchange of views 
on the major issues of current interest to the United 
States and the Soviet Union. 

There was no set agenda for this morning's 
discussion. The majority of the meeting was devoted 
to a review of the current status of U.S.-Soviet 
relations, including developments that have occurred 
since the United States and USSR summit conference in 
June of 1974. 

The two leaders also discussed upcoming 
issues of interest to both countries and also the 
Strategic Arms Limitation Talks, the SALT negotiations, 
that have resumed in Geneva. 

In addition to the bilateral subjects, the 
meeting also included a review of international issues 
such as the East-West negotiations currently in progress 
and the situation in the Middle East. 

President Ford and Foreign Minister Gromyko 
both agreed on the importance of continuing efforts 
toward a lasting and equitable peace in the Middle 
East. 

Others attending the meeting this morning 
were Secretary of State Kissinger and Ambassador 
Walter Stoessel and the Russian Ambassador, Dobrynin. 

The meeting did include a brief review of 
the Conference on Security and Cooperation in Europe. 
That is the CSCE, and the force reduction talks which 
have just resumed in Vienna. 
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There was a question this morning as to 
whether or not the President planned to meet again 
with Mr. Gromyko. The answer to that is no. I 
think there was some misunderstanding. He plans to 
leave the United States on Tuesday, but I think you had 
better, if you want to, check that definitely with the 
Russian Embassy. 

Q Isn't Kissinger going to meet again 
with him? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know the answer to that. 

Q Did they talk about the trade bill? 

MR. HUSHEN: Yes, the President touched on 
his discussions with the Congress aimed at producing 
an acceptable trade bill. 

Q Did he get some sort of an agreement on 
immigration from the Soviet Foreign Minister? 

MR. HUSHEN: I can't go beyond what I have 
said on that. 

Q Did Gromyko say anything on this 
subject? You said the President touched on it. Did 
Gromyko respond in any way? 

MR. HUSHEN: I can't give you any answer to 
that question. 

Q Does the President feel that there is 
an agreement soon, that there might be an agreement 
soo~with the talks today? Jackson said much depended 
on the White House talks. 

MR. HUSHEN: On the trade bill? 

Q Yes. 

MR. HUSHEN: Nothing that I can say. 
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Q Are you aware of what Senator Jackson 
said? His quote was that the Soviet Union had turned 
180 degrees. Are you aware of that quote? 

MR. HUSHEN: No, I am not. 

Q Have you read anything about that? 

MR. HUSHEN: No, I didn't see the wire on 
Jackson, and I didn't get a chance to get a fill-in. 

Q Do you have answers for questions that 
haven't been answered. 

MR. HUSHEN: That is a good way to phrase it. 
I have some more answers here. 

Q 
California? 

What about the courier service to 

MR. HUSHEN: I can't get into that until I 
have had a chance to get some more guidance on how it 
is going to be operated in this Administration. We 
have checked parts of the question as to ·.what 
went on before. 

Q Jack, as a result of the President's 
talks with Jackson and with Gromyko, does the Adminis­
tration feel that a trade bill is near, that agreement 
is imminent? 

MR. HUSHEN: The President certainly is 
hopeful, but I didn't want to put a time on it. 

Q Is he more hopeful now than he was 
earlier this morniag 

MR. HUSHEN: Charlie, I have not seen the 
President, and I don't know. 

Q The Senate hopes to get that through 
before they adjourn. That is what one of the Senators 
told me. 

Q Do you have anything more on his weekend 
schedule? 

MR. HUSHEN: No, that is about all I can 
give you on the meeting this morning and nothing more 
on what I have said this weekend. 
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Q What exactly did they talk about? 

MR. HUSHEN: A whole range of issues. In 
fact, I think this is the first time they have sat 
down together and they discussed a whole broad range 
of issues. 

Q Did anything come out of it beyond 
their exchange of views? 

MR. HUSHEN: The purpose of the meeting 
was to provide a setting for this kind of discussion. 
No subjects were raised with the idea of hammering 
out an agreement. 

Q Do you mean to say that the President 
touched on his discussions in Congress on this trade 
bill and you can't tell us whether it went beyond that, 
whether there was any discussion of a commitment 
from the Soviets in terms of numbers, whether there 
was any 

MR. HUSHEN: I cannot. 

Q Was there any ~alk of renewing President 
Nixon's invitation to Mr. Brezhnev to come here next year 
for a return summit? 

MR. HUSHEN: I think the invitation is still 
on, and President Ford looks forward to Mr. Brezhnev's 
visit here in 1975. 

Q But there was no discussion that you know 
of? 

MR. HUSHEN: No. Well, let me back up for a 
minute. The President indicated he was looking 
forward to the visit. 

MORE 
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Q Jack, have you got anything on this 
briefing of Mr. Nixon that you can tell us? 

MR. HUSHEN: I was just saying to Fay, we 
were able to get some of the details, but I want to 
be able to talk to some other people before I start 
commenting on it. 

Q When are you going to do this, Jack? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know. Hopefully we 

l 

will try to get some today, but the President's schedule 
has really been tight. 

Q Let me just state what we know so far. 
Mr. Nixon gets regular briefings from the White House. 
Sometimes these briefings are in written form; some­
times they are in person. And they go by military 
courier f.light• Is that right? 

MR. HUSHEN: Let me just correct one thing in 
that. There have been no "in person" briefings. What 
has gone to Mr. Nixon is generally foreign policy 
intelligence type material similar to that which has 
been given to other former Presidents. 

Q Did you find that classification, Jack? 
Did you get that? 

MR. HUSHEN: No. 

Q Does he get this once a week? 

MR. HUSHEN: As I said, I can't get into any 
more details on this until I have some more information. 

is planning to go to the Ann Arbor-Colorado game Saturday? 
Q Jack, can you tell us whether the President \ 

MR. HUSHEN: This Saturday? \ 

Q Tomorrow, yes. They seem to be expecting 
him. 

MR. HUSHEN: Well, it would be one surprised 
Deputy Press Secretary. 

Q He is seeing Tanaka, isn't he? 
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MR. HUSHEN: He is seeing the Australian --

Q No, he is seeing the Japanese tomorrow. 

HUSHEN: But, I announced the Australian 
man for and then Tanaka. 

Q Just to clear this up, did you say this l 
morning that one of the purposes of this briefing process 
is that Mr. Ford can seek advice from President Nixon 
on foreign policy? Did I understand you correctly to 
say that? 

MR. HUSHEN: Well, that could be. I think I will 
just stick with what I said this morning. 

Q Well, I haven't got it clear. 

MR. HUSHEN: That would make sense to me, that 
the reason to keep former Presidents aware of what is 
transpiring after they leave office would be so that 
the sitting President could call upon them for 
consultation purposes primarily in the foreign policy 
area. 

Q Has this been done yet? Has Mr. Ford 
asked --

MR. HUSHEN: You are getting into areas that 
I can be of no help. 

Q Are you going to try to get this in the 
next hour? 

MR. HUSHEN: There are a lot of things going 
on around here. 

Q We have all had our preliminary stories and 
there is a certain backing-off here with you now, and 
before this day is out 

MR. HUSHEN: Backing off of what? 

Q You are saying now there have been no 
individual briefings. The impression this morning was 
that this had been both ways. 

MR. HUSHEN: There were individual briefings 
for former President Johnson, for instance. 
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Q You are saying this has not been the 
case for Nixon? 

MR. HUSHEN: Not that I have been able to 
ascertain. 

Q You know some of us already have these 
stories out and we need some clarification. 

Q When we say "courier plane", do we mean 
that plane goes out there only for this purpose, or is 
this plane going out there anyway and it is used to send 
this along? 

MR. HUSHEN: It is called a courier plane, but 
it is my understanding whenever there is material to 
go, and it generally occurs every week or ten days, it 
goes. But there are other things. For instance, we 
still have quite a bit of communications equipment 
out there and we exchange communication teams. 

Q The plane is not sent 011t there primarily 
to deliver this material to Mr. Nixon, is it? 

MR. HUSHEN: Again, I don't know the answer to 
that. 

Q Do you mean you exchange communication 
teams? What does that mean? 

MR. HUSHEN: Well, we have the White House 
communications system, Signal Corps, and they stay out there 
for a period of time, and then they come back here. There 
is still a lot of communications gear out there. 

Q Did Julie Eisenhower call and ask to 
be taken there and a plane just happened to be ready 
to go? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know. 

Q What kind of communications? 

MR. HUSHEN: The Signal Corps lines between 
here and San Clemente are still in place. 

Q Is that the only kind of communications you 
are talking about? You are not talking of transition 
communications or anything like that? 

MR. HUSHEN: There is that going on too. 
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Q You don't mean just people engaged in 
Signal Corps operations? 

MR. HUSHEN: No, but for instance,on the 
plane Julie was on, there were some White House 
Communications people taken out there. 

Q Was Dr. Tkach on that plane? 

MR. HUSHEN: I think the answer is no, but 
I haven't had a chance to check it. 

Q Was he on one today? 

MR. HUSHEN: Again, I don't know. 
in the Military Aide's office. 

Call Mr. Gulley 

Q Gulleyis out jogging. _j 
Q Jack, have any of the former President's 

files been brought out to him on that plane? 

MR. HUSHEN: Not that I am aware of, but I 
don't know what happened regarding the former President 
in that regard. 

Q Has the President heard anything about 
the latest report that the former President is going to 
the hospital on Monday? 

MR. HUSHEN: I don't know other than what I 
have said in the past, that he has asked Dr. Lukash to 
keep him generally informed. I think we will probably 
stick with that. 

THE PRESS: Thank you. 

END (AT 4:14 P.M. EDT) 
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September 24, 1974 

,. 
SUBJECT: DISMANTLEMENT OF KEY BISCAYNE 

According to a wire story yesterday, the GSA is in the process of dismantling 
Key Biscayne. Is that correct? 

GUIDANCE: It's my understanding that GSA is in the process of making a 
survey to determine what can be economically retrieved from 
Key Biscayne, (Underground wiring, etc:., w~ll not come out 
since it would. cost more to-take it o'i.it thari ·leav~il7~rtowe_~r. 

Z -4.u_t:::;r~ ~;;o:d;z::::.:c.~i~ ~~ · 
Is it correct that the Coast Guard Patrol has reduced in size their secure 
area around the former President's home? 

GUIDANCE: It's my understanding that the Patrol has been brought in 200 
to 300 yards to the area of the shark nets. 

~~ ).~ 
Why is any security still provided for former President Nixon? 

GUIDANCE: I understand that this security will be provided until GSA 
completes their survey, but if you want any more detailed 
answers, I strongly suggest you call Jack Warner at 
Secret Service. 

• 
/ 
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MEMORANDUM -

THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

September 25, 1974 .J 

MEMORANDUM FOR MR. RON NESSEN 

FROM: Physician to the President 

At 1:30 pm today 1 spoke to Doctor John Lungren regarding former 
President Nixon's current medical status. He stated that special 
diagnostic studies had indicated that the former President showed 
evidence of having had a blood clot to the right lung. The former 
President is resting well and in good spirits while undergoing 
the process of regulating the anticoagulant (or blood thinning) 
treatment. In addition, Doctor Lungren said the former President 
will be undergoing other diagnostic studies during his hospitalization. 
1 related this information to the President in the Oval Office about 
2:00pm. 

t/J?n~ 
William M. Lukash, M. D. 
Rear Admiral, MC, USN 

~ 12{2-~~~~~ 
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SUBJECT: 

-
Septem.ber 26, 1974 

HAS PRESIDENT FORD BEEN UPDATED 
ON FORMER PRESIDENT NIXON'S. 
CONDIT ION TODAY? 

Has President Ford talked with Former President Nixon or had an update 
on his condition from Dr. Lukash today? 

GUIDANCE: :I'he President has not talked with Mr. Nixon, nor has Dr. 
Lukash talked with Mr. Nixon 1 s physician today. 

Dr. Lukash will be advised on any changes in the clinical 
condition of Former President Nixon by Dr. Lungren. 
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SUBJECT: 

-
September 26, 1974 

CONGRESS ASKS AMOUNT OF MONIES 
BEING SPENT ON RICHARD NIXON• 

How much money is being spent, in toto, on Richard Nixon and his family, 
homes, etc. ? 

GUIDANCE: Roy Ash and Arthur Sampson, in testimony yesterday on the hill, 
were askeq the same question. It is my understanding that OMB 
·is looking into this and will have more information available in 
the next few days. Until that time, there is nothing further I 
can give you. 



THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

September 26, 1974 

MEMORANDUM FOR RON NESSEN 

FROM: LARRY SPEAKES 

SUBJECT: NIXON HOSPITALIZATION 

Q: What medical benefits does former President Nixon 
have? 

A: He--and all former Presidents--are entitled to free 
medical care at military hospitals. In a civilian 
hospital, he receives no government compensation. 

FYI: Johnson used military hospitals. 

• 

~ 
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1 on 

-
September 25, 1974 

SUBJECT: TRANSIT~ FUNDS FOR MR. NIXON 
CUT BACK · ·----- · 

The House Appropriations Committee approved $398,000, less than half 
the $850, 000 requested by the Administration for Mr. Nixon under the 
Transition Act and Former Presidents Act • 

. --:: _···c-·-~ • ·-- ... -.· --·~ ... -----~;:--· . • .. ~-.-:::-.-:.- - -- .: .. --.- :::":.--:--.....__ . _: -_----~ - - . 
What's President Ford's reaction to the House Approp:datibhs ·committee ... 
cut of the Transition Funds for Former President Nixon? 

GUIDANCE: I haven't talked to the President about that, so I have no 
reaction to give you. 

I would point out, however, that GSA, on behalf of t~e Former 
President, requested the Transition Funds for Mr. Nixon, 
and that request was merely transmitted to Congress by the 
White House. 

Are you saying that Mr. Ford never saw this request for funds for Mr. Nixon? 

GUIDANCE: As you know, GSA did the negotiating with the Former President, 
and has since testified on the Hill on this subject. The mechanical 
process was that Mr. Ford did transmit the request to the Hill. 

JGC 

'. 
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October 30, 1974 

NIXON'S HEALTH -
Q. Is President Ford being kept informed of President Nixon's 

condition? 

A. Dr. Lukash is keeping the President generally informed of the 

condition of former President Nixon as he has in the past. 

Q. Has Dr. Lukash been in contact with anyone at San Clemente? 

A. Yes, he has spoken with Dr. Lungren about the former 

President's condition. {FYI - Lukash called Lungren last 

night and again this morning and gave President Ford a condition 

report which is that the former President is still carried on 

the critical list although his condition is stable.) 




